

Haldane McCall Plc

ANNUAL REPORT

AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2024.

www.hmkplc.com

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Contents



Page

	5
Corporate information	2
Director's Report	4
Corporate Governance Report	6
Vision, Mission & Core Values	8
Operating Result and Dividend	8
Business Overview	9
Statement of Directors' Responsibilities	11
Statement of Directors' Certification	23
Auditor's Report	26
Report of Audit Committee	31
Basis of Preparation	32
Statement of Comprehensive Income	33
Statement of Financial Position	34
Statement of Changes in Shareholders' Equity	35
Statement of Cash Flows	36
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements	37
Five Year Financial Summary	64
Statement of Value-Added	65



CORPORATE INFORMATION

Mr. George Oguntade (SAN) Mr. Edward Akinlade Prince Oyewole Olurin Sir. Adewole Farinu Prince Samuel Oyebola	Chairman Group Managing Director Company Secretary Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director
Princess Ifeoluwaseyi Adesola Mr. David Emuloh	Non-Executive Director Executive Director
Mrs. Abiola Elugbaju	Executive Director
Miss Shola Ojunde	Executive Director
Mr. Bidwell Onyeakosi Mr. Tobenna Nnamani HRM Nosirudeen Babatunde Akanbi O Chief Mrs. Eby Akala Mr. Dapo Adekoje Mrs. Olajumoke Oluwagbemiro	Independent Non-Executive Director Independent Non-Executive Director . L. Independent Non-Executive Director Independent Non-Executive Director Independent Non-Executive Director Independent Non-Executive Director
Company's Number:	RC: 1020941
Registered Office:	2, Shonny Way, Shonibare Estate, Maryland, Ikeja, Lagos.
Company Secretary:	Mr. Olurin Oyewole Emmanuel
Company's Independent Auditor:	Funsho Owoyemi & Co. (Chartered Accountants) 117, Apapa Road, Ebute- Metta (West), Lagos. Tel: 234-8033076727
	E-mail: funshowoyemi@yahoo.com Website: www.funshowo.com

Elegushi, Lekki Lagos.



Registrars:

Africa Prudential Plc 220, Ikorodu Road Palm Grove, Lagos

List of Bankers and their Addresses:

Zenith Bank Plc Bolade Oshodi Shogunle, Ikeja, Lagos

Guaranty Trust Bank 31, Mobolaji Bank Anthony Way, Maryland, Lagos.

Union Bank Plc Wing 2, No.4, Mobolaji Bank Anthony Way, Maryland, Lagos.

Parallex Bank Plot 1261, Victoria Island, Lagos.



DIRECTOR'S REPORT:

It is with immense pride and deep sense of responsibility that I welcome each and every one to the first annual general meeting. It is my honour to share with you today the fruits of our collective efforts, our triumphs and our aspirations for the future.

Macro-Economic Reviews:

The year **2024** unfolded against a back drop of significant global economic challenges, a scenario that tested our resilience and adaptability in business. The global supply chain and consumer behaviour in the industry, we operate in term of operational cost, and the associated factors is well evidenced in the critical gap, we currently experienced in our National Housing Needs which has been experiencing a huge deficit.

Inflation has continually been a matter of serious concern, while Forex remain unpredictable.

Financial Results:

The Financial year **2024** was a year of solid and significant performance for **HMK Plc**, underpinned by strong commercial momentum and strategic operational efficiencies. Our financial results reflect not only our resilience in the face of a challenging economic environment, but also our commitment to continuous growth and value creation.

We experienced a remarkable growth in our financial metrics which is a good testament to our robust business model and effectiveness of our strategic initiatives.

Our revenue saw a significant increase of **110%** in **2024** above that of **2023**, and the profit after tax witnessed a **164%** increase, thus putting us at a total assets value of **21Billion** as at year end **31st December**, **2024**, and represent an increase of about **23%** growth over **2023** Financial Year.

Dividend Policy:

The Company has a Dividend Policy that was adopted 31/1/2024 and it states that: The Board **may** recommend target dividend payment ratio in respect of each financial year which would be 30% of net profit (profit after tax). This represents both Interim and Final dividend payment for the financial year.

The board has recommended the sum of #220,587,900 which is 32.5% of the profit after tax as dividend to be paid to shareholders at 7kobo per shares for the year 31, December, 2024.



Directors Holding as of December 31, 2024:

SN	NAME OF DIRECTOR	HOLDING	% HOLDING
1	Edward Akinlade	1,535,253,796	49.18
2	Justice Oguntade George Adesola	18,398,723	0.59
3	Prince Oyewole Olurin	857,543	0.03
4	Sir. Adewole Farinu	1,357,543	0.04
5	Oyebola Prince Samuel	857,143	0.03
6	Mr. Tobena Nnamani	-	-
7	Abiola Elugbaju	7,975,238	0.26
8	Emuloh David	7,975,638	0.26
9	Bidwell Onyeakosi	857,143	0.03
10	Dapo Adekoje	18,126,400	0.58
11	HRM Nosirudeen Babatunde Akanbi O. L.	300,000	0.01
12	Ebele Anisiobi Akala	300,000	0.01
13	Princess Ifeoluwaseyi Adesola	867,543	0.03
14	Miss Shola Ojunde	28,971	0.00
15	Mrs Olajumoke Oluwagbemiro	33,990,400	1.09

Shareholding Structure as at December 31, 2024:

SN	HOLDER TYPE	HOLDER COUNT	HOLDING	% HOLDING
1	Corporate	28	656,581,701	21.03
2	Foreign	2	50,000	0.00
3	Individual	880	2,484,648,550	78.94
4	Institution	2	25,943	0.00
5	Joint	4	330,000	0.01
6	Pension	2	363,806	0.01
7	TOTAL	918	3,122,000,000	100



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT:

Please find below list of Board Members and the various committees as at **December 31**, **2024:**

Board of Directors (BOD) Composition:

1.	Chief George Oguntade, SAN.	-	Chairman
2.	Mr. Edward Akinlade	-	GMD
3.	Prince Oyewole Olurin	-	Company Secretary
4.	Mr. David Emuloh	-	ED
5.	Miss. Shola Ojunde	-	ED
6.	Sir Adewole Farinu	-	NED
7.	Mrs. Abiola Elugbaju	-	ED
8.	Princess Ifeoluwaseyi Adesola	-	NED
9.	Mr. Bidwell Onyeakosi	-	INED
10.	Prince Samuel Oyebola	-	NED
11.	Mr. Tobenna Nnamani	-	NED
12.	HRM. Nosirudeen Babatunde Akanbi O.L.	-	INED
13.	Mrs. Ebele Anisiobi Akala	-	INED
14.	Mrs. Olajumoke Oluwagbemiro	-	INED
15.	Mr. Adedapo Adekoje	-	INED

BOD Committees:

Nomination, Remuneration and Governance Committee:

1.	Mr. Tobenna Nnamani	-	Chairman
2.	Mr. Bidwell Onyeakosi	-	Member

3. Miss. Shola Ojunde - Member

Audit Committee:

- 1. Prince Samuel Oyebola
- 2. Sir Adewole Farinu
- 3. Mr. Oludayo Mayowa
- 4. Mr. Gbenga Olowojare
- 5. Mr. Dickson Osagie

Risk Management Committee:

- 1. Sir Adewole Farinu
- 2. Mr. David Emuloh
- 3. Princess Ifeolwaseyi Adesola

- Chairman
- Vice Chairman
- Member/Shareholder's Representative
- Member/ Shareholder's Representative
- Member/ Shareholder's Representative
- Chairman
- Member
- Member



Board Appointment Process, Compensation, Board Meetings and Attendance:

Kindly note that the Board members of Haldane McCall Plc are diverse professionals from different works of life. The appointment process is at the Board Meetings and are usually introduced by the GMD with their CV Profile attached to the Board papers that must have been circulated prior to the meeting date for members to send in their observations after a thorough background check has been conducted.

The Board had **4 meetings** for each quarter of the calendar year **2024** and all Directors were present except for **Mr. Bidwell Onyeakosi** who sent in his apologies on two occasions.

Appointment and Other Board Changes:

Aligning with best practice and our commitment to excellence in corporate governance, we welcome new director(s) that are bringing wealth of experiences and expertise from diverse sectors. This strategic infusion of new perceptive is vital for our continue innovation and growth.

A key appointment was that of **Mr. Ojewande Olufemi** as **an Executive Director**. His appointment amongst others is a step toward further enhancing our board expertise.



VISION, MISION AND CORE VALUES:

Our Vision:

Our vision is to create a company that will provide an enabling environment for the development of a sustainable framework for Africa in real estate and hospitality industries.

We will achieve this by positively engaging the stakeholders in all areas of our operation

Our Mission:

To create sustainable real estate business models by investing in and contributing to the socio-economic development of Nigeria, in particular, the West African subregion, and Africa in general.

Core Values:

- **Transparency:** We are transparent in all our operational processes.
- **Innovation:** Innovation defines our value proposition.
- **Best:** We strive to be the best in every sector we operate.
- **Efficiency:** We optimize our resources for efficiency.
- **Proactiveness:** We have a proactive approach in all our business operations

OPERATING RESULT AND DIVIDEND:

The Company results for the year ended **31**st **December 2024** are as set out below. The profit for the year has been transferred to Revenue reserves.

However, the Board of Directors may recommend the approval to pay **30%** of Profit after Tax as dividend to the shareholders and investors.

	2024	2023	Percentage
	N'000	N'000	Variance
REVENUE	3,642,736	1,738,746	110%
PROFIT BEFORE TAX	1,014,366	377,880	167%
TAXATI ON	335,634	120,921	176%
ΡΑΤ	678,732	256,958	164%



BUSINESS OVERVIEW:

Dividend Information:

The company has the policy of declaring 30% of profit after tax as dividend.

Directors' Interests in Shares:

Directors' interests in the issued share capital of the Company as recorded in the Register of Members and/or as notified by the Directors in compliance with Sections 301 and 302 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act 2020 and the Listing Requirements of the Nigerian Exchange Limited were as follows.

Our People:

Our members of staff and management team are adequately trained and professionally seasoned, to create and build up good business and mutually benefitting relationship with our clients/customers and public sector institutions.

Health, Safety and Employee Welfare:

The company accords high priority to the health, safety and welfare of its employees both in and outside the work place.

Employee Welfare:

In furtherance of this, the company has a **Life Assurance Policy** and a **Personal Accident Policy** to adequately insure and protect its employees.

The services of hospitals and clinics are retained in several locations to facilitate employees' access to health care. High emphasis is placed on safety and general tidiness of the work environment.

Thus, the company retains the services of a consultant who visits the company to inspect its facilities and advise on safety measures to be put in place by the management of the company.

The company provides subsidies to all employees for lunch, transportation and housing.

Labour Force and Minimum Wage:

The minimum wage has been increased to **N70,000** which is in accordance with the newly approved minimum wage legislation under the national administration of **President Bola Ahmed Tinubu.** So, management has approved the payment of salaries to the staffs to reflect the current minimum wage, effective from **September 2024**.

Employee Recognition and Incentive Scheme:

The company is committed to keeping employees fully involved as much as possible, regarding the company's performance and progress and seeking their views, wherever practicable on matters which particularly affect them as employees. In line with the company's policy of continuous development of its human resources, the company ensures the continuous upskilling of Its employees on relevant trainings both locally and internationally.

9



Employment of Disabled Persons:

It is the policy of the company that there should be no unfair discrimination in considering applications for employment, including those from disabled persons. All employees, whether or not disabled, are given equal opportunities to develop.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Executive Summary:

In order to support the company's strategic goals, the IT Department concentrated on improving operational efficiency, enhancing cybersecurity, and streamlining digital infrastructure in 2024. Upgrading vital software and hardware systems, strengthening privacy and security protocols, and optimizing digital workflows to boost efficiency were among the main projects.

In order to spur innovation and guarantee sustained company growth, IT initiatives in the future will give top priority to automation, data security improvements, cloud infrastructure optimization, and digital transformation. The department is still dedicated to promoting scalability, security, and efficiency while coordinating IT investments with the business's strategic objective.

Appreciation and Closing Remarks:

Looking forward to **2025**, we remain cautiously optimistic, despite the challenges faced in the past years.

Que

Chief George Oguntade (SAN) Chairman FRC/2016/NBA/00000014230



STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RELATIONS TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2024

The directors of **Haldane McCall Pic**, accept responsibility for the preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

The directors further accept responsibility for maintaining adequate accounting records and for such internal controls as the directors deemed necessary for the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements whether due to fraud or error.

The directors have made an assessment of the company's ability to continue as a going concern and have no reason to believe that company will not remain as a going concern in the year ahead.

SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF HALDANE McCALL PLC ON Friday, 7TH February, 2025. BY:

Name:Chief George OguntadeDesignation:ChairmanFRC/2016/NBA/0000014230

drawt

Name:Edward AkinladeDesignation:Group Managing DirectorFRC/2014/ICAN/0000007325



The Directors of Haldane McCall PLC are pleased to present their report on the affairs of the Company, together with the **AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS** and the auditor's report for the year ended **31 December 2024.**

1. Principal Activities:

The principal activities of the Company are in development, selling and managing real estate assets, with remarkable growth and development in the hospitality business across Nigeria.

2. Changes on the Board of Directors:

The names of the Directors that served during the year are as listed on page 2. In the course of the financial year ended **December 31, 2024**, there were no changes in the Board of Directors of **Haldane McCall PLC.**

3. Directors' Remuneration:

The Company ensures that remuneration paid to its directors complies with the provisions of the codes of corporate governance issued by its regulators. In compliance with the provisions of Principle 16, and the recommended practices in **Articles 16.5 – 16.14** of the **Nigerian Code of Corporate Governance 2018** as issued by the **Securities and Exchange Commission**, the Company makes disclosure of remuneration paid to its directors as follows:

Remuneration Package	Description	Time of payment
Basic Salary:	 Part of gross salary package for Executive Directors only * Reflects the industry competitive salary package and the extent to which the Company's objectives have been met for the financial year. 	, .
13th Month Salary:	 Part of gross salary package for Executive Directors only •Reflects the industry competitive salary package and the extent to which the Company's objectives have been met for the financial year. 	month of the
Director's Fee:	• Paid annually immediately after the Annual General Meeting (AGM) to Non-Executive Directors only.	Paid annually immediately after the AGM
Sitting Allowances:	 Allowances paid to Non-Executive Directors only for attending Board and Board Committee Meetings. 	Paid after each meeting



Commitment to Good Corporate Governance:

Haldane McCall PLC ("the Company") is committed to carry on its operations in a fair, honest and transparent manner in compliance with a high level of professional ethics, and international best practice and procedure in Corporate Governance. With the goal to deliver greater shareholder value, the Company has continued to subject its operations to the high standards of corporate governance, which is an essential foundation for sustainable corporate success. We are dedicated to uphold the creed and principles of good Corporate Governance in all our operations which is the bedrock of the public trust and confidence reposed in us by shareholders, business partners, employees and the financial markets; and the key to our continued long-term success.

Corporate Governance is a key driver of corporate accountability and business prosperity. It is also aimed at increasing entities' levels of transparency, trust and integrity, and create an environment for sustainable business operations. Haldane McCall PLC complies with the provisions of the Code of Best Practices on Corporate Governance in Nigeria and the requirements of the current Nigerian Code of Corporate Governance 2018. The Company adopts a responsible approach in its activities by maintaining a high standard of openness and accountability while also taking into consideration the interest of stakeholders.

During the year under review, Haldane McCall PLC duly observed all regulations guiding its activities. Haldane McCall PLC established structures / mechanism to enhance its internal control while the efficiency of measures for enhancing operational and compliance control are continually reviewed from time to time. The Company executed various governance activities which included the review of the mandate of all the Board Committees in order to align same with leading practices and extant regulations. The Board and its Committees also carried out self-assessment to review their compliance with their terms of reference. Entrenched in the fibre of Haldane McCall PLC is the culture of openness which promotes healthy discourse and encourages employees to report improper activities. The belief that success is only worth celebrating when achieved the right way through a process supported and sustained with the right values remains one of the Company's guiding principles.

i. The Board:

The Board of Directors is responsible for the governance of the Company and is accountable to shareholders for creating and delivering sustainable value through the management of the Company's business. The Board is committed to the highest standards of business integrity, ethical values and governance. It recognizes the responsibility of the Company to conduct its affairs with transparency, prudence, fairness, accountability and social responsibility, thereby safeguarding the interests of all stakeholders. The Board ensures that an appropriate level of checks and balances is maintained, in order to ensure that decisions are taken with the best interest of the Company's stakeholders in mind.

The company's Directors possess the right balance of expertise, skills and experience, which translates to an effective Board and executive management team capable of steering the affairs of the Company in an ever changing and challenging environment.



The Board determines the overall strategy of the Company and follows up on its implementation, supervises the performance of the Company and ensures adequate management, thus actively contributing to developing the Company as a focused, sustainable and global brand. The synergy between the Board and Management fosters interactive dialogue in setting broad policy guidelines in the management and direction of the Company to enhance optimal performance and ensures that associated risks are properly managed. Furthermore, the Board plays a central role in conjunction with Management in ensuring that the Company is financially balanced, well governed and risks are identified and well mitigated.

Members of the Board of Directors are seasoned professionals, who have excelled in various sectors including accounting, engineering, oil and gas, telecommunications, manufacturing and banking. They possess the requisite integrity, skills and experience to bring to bear independent judgment on the deliberations of the Board and decisions of the Board. They have a good understanding of the Company's business and affairs to enable them properly evaluate information and responses provided by Management, and to provide objective challenge to management.

The Board meets quarterly and additional meetings are convened as required. Material decisions may be taken between meetings by way of written resolutions, as provided for in the Articles of Association of the Company. The Directors are provided with comprehensive information at each of the quarterly Board meetings and are also briefed on business developments between Board meetings.

ii. Responsibilities of the Board:

The Board has ultimate responsibility for determining the strategic objectives and policies of the Company to deliver long-term value by providing overall strategic direction within a framework of rewards, incentives and controls. The Board has delegated the responsibility for day-to-day operations of the Company to Management and ensures that Management strikes an appropriate balance between promoting long-term growth and delivering short-term objectives. In fulfilling its primary responsibility, the Board acknowledges the relationship between good governance and risk management practices, in relation to the achievement of the Company's strategic objectives and good financial performance.

iii. Responsibilities of the Board:

Notwithstanding the delegation of the operation of the Company to Management, the Board reserved certain powers which include the approval of quarterly, half- yearly and full year **FINANCIAL STATEMENTS** (whether audited or unaudited) and any significant change in accounting policies and/or practices; approval of major changes to the Company's corporate structure and changes relating to the Company's capital structure or its status as a public limited company; the determination and approval of the strategic objectives and policies of the Company to deliver long-term value; approval of the Company's strategy, medium and short term plan and its annual operating and capital expenditure budget; appointment or removal of Company Secretary; recommendation to shareholders, of the appointment or removal of auditors and the remuneration of Auditors; approval of resolutions and corresponding documentation for shareholders in general meeting(s), shareholders circulars, prospectus and principal regulatory filings with the



Regulators. Other powers reserved for the Board are the determination of Board structure, size and composition, including appointment and removal of Directors, succession planning for the Board and senior management and Board Committee membership; approval of mergers and acquisitions, expansion and establishment of subsidiaries; approval of remuneration policy and packages of the Managing Director and other Board members, appointment of the Managing Director and other Directors nominated by the Company; approval of the Board performance evaluation process, corporate governance framework and review of the performance of the Managing Director; approval of policy documents on significant issues including Enterprise-wide Risk Management, Human Resources, Credit, Corporate governance and Anti – Money laundering, and approval of all matters of importance to the Company as a whole because of their strategic, financial, risk or reputational implications or consequences.

iv. Role of the Chairman:

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive are separate and no one individual combines the two positions. The Chairman's main responsibility is to lead and manage the Board to ensure that it operates effectively and fully discharges its legal and regulatory responsibilities. The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that Directors receive accurate, timely and clear information to enable the Board take informed decisions and provide advice to promote the success of the Company. The Chairman also facilitates the contribution of Directors and promotes effective relationships and open communications between Executive and Non-Executive Directors, both inside and outside the Boardroom.

v. Role of the Managing Director / Chief Executive Officer:

The Board has delegated the responsibility for the day-to-day management of the Company to the Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer, who is supported by Executive Management. The Managing Director executes the powers delegated to him in accordance with guidelines approved by the Board of Directors.

Executive Management is accountable to the Board for the development and implementation of strategies and policies. The Board regularly reviews group performance, matters of strategic concern and any other matter it regards as material.

vi. Board Composition:

The Company's Articles of Association provides that, the Company's Board of Directors shall consist of no less than five (5) and not more than sixteen (16) Directors. The thorough process for selecting Board members gives premium to educational and professional background, integrity, competence, capability, knowledge, expertise, skills, experience and diversity. During the year under review, the Board provided the required leadership for the Company for prudent and effective risk management while it also ensured that resources were available to enable the Company achieve its aims.

vii. Board Meetings and Attendance

Members of the Board of Directors hold a minimum of four quarterly meetings to approve the company's business strategy and objectives, decide on policy matters,



direct and oversee the Company's affairs, progress, performance, operations, and finances; and ensure that adequate resources are available to meet the **Company's** goals and objectives. Attendance of Directors at quarterly meetings was very satisfactory.

Board Committees:

The Board carries out its responsibilities through its Standing Committees, which have clearly defined terms of reference, setting out their roles, responsibilities, functions and scope of authority. The Board of **Haldane McCall Pic** has five (5) Standing Committees alongside other Board Supervised Management Committees:

- *i.* Executive Board Committee;
- ii. Risk Management Committee
- *iii.* Remuneration Committee
- *iv.* Statutory Audit Committee

Through these Committees, the Board is able to effectively carry out its oversight responsibilities and take advantage of individual expertise to formulate strategies for the Company. The Committees make recommendations to the Board, which retains responsibility for final decision making. All Committees in the exercise of their powers so delegated conform to the regulations laid down by the Board, with well-defined terms of reference.

i. Executive Management Committee

The Committee is comprised of Senior Management staff, Heads of Departments and other management staff. The Committee holds its meetings every Monday to deliberate on daily management operations, business reviews, targets and sundry issues. Members of the Committee are:

•	Mr. Edward Akinlade	Group Managing Director

- Mr. David Emuloh Executive Director
 - Mrs. Abiola Elugbaju
 Executive Director
- Mr. Shola Ojunde Executive Director

ii. Risk Management Committee

This Committee is tasked with the responsibility of setting and reviewing the Company's risk policies. The coverage of supervision includes the following: Credit Risk, Reputational Risk, Operations Risk, Technology Risk, Market Risk, Liquidity Risk and other pervasive risks as may be posed by the events in the industry at any point in time. The Terms of Reference of the Board Risk Management Committee include to:

- Review and recommend for the approval of the Board, the Company's Risk Management Policies including the risk profile and limits;
- Determine the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's risk detection and measurement systems and controls;
- Evaluate the Company's internal control and assurance



framework annually, in order to satisfy itself on the design and completeness of the framework;

- Oversee Management's process for the identification of significant risks across the Company and the adequacy of risk mitigation, prevention, detection and reporting mechanisms;
- Review and recommend to the Board for approval, the contingency plan for specific risks;
- Review the Company's compliance level with applicable laws and regulatory requirements which may impact on the Company's risk profile;
- Conduct periodic review of changes in the economic and business environment, including emerging trends and other factors relevant to the Company's risk profile;
- Conduct periodic review of changes in the economic and business environment, including emerging trends and other factors relevant to the Company's risk profile;
- Handle any other issue referred to the Committee from time to time by the Board
- Review the Company's compliance level with applicable laws and regulatory requirements which may impact on the Company's risk profile;
- Conduct periodic review of changes in the economic and business environment, including emerging trends and other factors relevant to the Company's risk profile;
- Conduct periodic review of changes in the economic and business environment, including emerging trends and other factors relevant to the Company's risk profile;
- Handle any other issue referred to the Committee from time to time by the Board.

iii. Remuneration Committee:

The Board Remuneration Committee has the responsibility of setting the principles and parameters of Remuneration Policy across the Company, determining the policy of the Company on the remuneration of the Managing Director and other Executive Directors and the specific remuneration packages and to approve the policy relating to all remuneration schemes and long-term incentives for employees of the Company.

The Committee is responsible for the determination of remuneration policy and its application for senior executives, performance evaluation, the adoption of incentive plans, and various governance responsibilities related to remuneration to a standalone committee, or to any other committee capable of combining it with their existing functions, as is appropriate.



iv. Statutory Audit Committee:

This Committee is responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with all the relevant policies and procedures both from the regulators and as laid-down by the Board of Directors. Its major functions include:

- the approval of the annual audit plan of the internal auditors,
- review and approval of the audit scope and plan of the external auditors,
- review of the audit report on internal weaknesses observed by both the internal and external auditors during their respective examinations and
- to ascertain whether the accounting and reporting policies of the Company are in accordance with legal requirements and agreed ethical practices.
- The Committee also reviews the Company's annual and interim audited financial statements, particularly the effectiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and systems of internal control as well as areas of judgment involved in the compilation of the Company's results.
- The Committee is responsible for the review of the integrity of the Company's financial reporting and
- oversees the independence and objectivity of the external auditors, review and
- ensures that adequate whistle blowing procedures are in place and that a summary of issues reported are highlighted to the Committee; and
- review the independence of the external auditors and ensures that where non-audit services are provided by the external auditors and that there is no conflict of interest. The Committee has access to external auditors to seek explanations and additional information, while the internal and external auditors have unrestricted access to the Committee, which ensures that their independence is in no way impaired.



In compliance with the provisions of Section 404 (3) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act 2020, which requires the Director representatives to be two (2); the Committee is made up of two (2) Non-Executive Directors and three (3) Shareholders of the Company appointed at Annual General Meetings with the Company Secretary / Legal Adviser as the Secretary. The membership of the Committee at the Board level is based on the relevant experience of the Board members, while one of the shareholders serves as the Chairman of the Committee. The Committee has as its chairman, a member representing the shareholders and holds meetings from time to time to deliberate on Audit Scope & Plan, the Time Table of the Company for the year, the Audited Accounts & unaudited trading results of the Company, Management Letter prepared by the External Auditors of the Company. In the performance of its functions, the Committee has unrestricted, direct access not just to the internal audit department but also to the external auditors.

Relations with Shareholders:

The Company is conscious of and deliberately promotes shareholders' rights. It continues to take necessary steps to improve on same. In its interaction with its shareholders, the Company lays emphasis on effective communication. Through its reports and the Annual General Meeting, the Board renders stewardship to the Company's shareholders. Besides these formal relations, the Board has in place other avenues for interaction with shareholders such as other less formal meetings and contacts.

The benefits from contributions, advice and wisdom from the shareholder members of the statutory Audit Committee remain invaluable. The inclusion of the representatives of the shareholders in the Audit Committee and also on the Board ensures that the shareholders are kept abreast of developments in the Company.

The Annual General Meeting:

The Annual General Meeting of the Company is the highest decision-making body of the Company. The Company's General Meetings are conducted in a transparent and fair manner. Shareholders have the opportunity to express their opinions on the Company's financial results and other issues affecting the Company. The Annual General Meeting is attended by representatives of regulators such as the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Nigerian Exchange Group, the Corporate Affairs Commission as well as representatives of Shareholders' Associations. The Company's has a Relations Unit, which deals directly with enquiries from shareholders and ensures that Shareholders' views are escalated to Management and the Board. In addition, quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results are published in national newspapers.

i. Management's, Protection of Shareholders' Rights:

The Board ensures the protection of the statutory and general rights of shareholders at all times, particularly their right to vote at general meetings. All shareholders are treated equally, regardless of volume of shareholding or social status.



ii. The Company Secretary:

The Company Secretary provides a point of reference and support for all Directors. The Company Secretary also consults regularly with Directors to ensure that they receive required information promptly. The Board may obtain information from external sources, such as consultants and other advisers, if there is a need for outside expertise, via the Company Secretary or directly. The Company Secretary is also responsible for assisting the Board and Management in the implementation of the Nigerian Code of Corporate Governance, coordinating the orientation and training of new Directors and the continuous education of Non-Executive Directors; assisting the Chairman and Managing Director to formulate an annual Board Plan and with the administration of other strategic issues at the Board level; organizing Board meetings and ensuring that the minutes of Board meetings clearly and properly capture Board discussions and decisions.

iii. Insider Trading and Price Sensitive Information:

The Company has in place a policy regarding trading in its shares by its directors and employees on the terms and conditions similar to the standards set out by the Nigerian Exchange Group. Directors, insiders and their related persons in possession of confidential price sensitive information ("insider information") are prohibited from dealing with the securities of the Company where such would amount to insider trading. Directors, insiders and related parties are prohibited from disposing, selling, buying or transferring their shares in the Company for a "lock up" period commencing from the date of receipt of such insider information until such a period when the information is released to the public or any other period as defined by the Company from time to time. In addition to the above, the Company makes necessary disclosure as required under Rule 111 of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") Rules and Regulations which stipulates that Directors and top Management employees and other insiders of public companies shall notify the SEC of any sale or purchase of shares in the company, not later than forty-eight (48) hours after such activity. The Directors of the Company comply strictly with the laid down procedure and policy regarding trading in the Company's shares.

iv. Corporate Social Responsibilities:

Interaction with the Society:

The Company in its activities pays due attention to ethical values, complies with legal requirements and takes into consideration the various stakeholders comprising not just its members but also the general populace and communities where it carries on business. The Company ensures maximum care for the environment where it operates by maintaining the highest environmental standards. Being an employer, supplier and consumer, Haldane McCall PLC contributes to the economic growth in various ways.



v. Internal Financial Controls

The Company has in place procedures and structures for an effective control environment that promotes the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company's business. These include the safeguarding of the Company's assets and the maintenance of proper accounting records and financial information among others. The Audit Committee also plays a vital role in ensuring a sound system of internal control.

Haldane McCall PLC and the Law:

Haldane McCall PLC ensures compliance with the laws and regulations guiding its operations in Nigeria. The Company has in place the following Policies:

- i. Securities Trading Policy
- ii. Code of Conduct and Business Ethics
- iii. Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy
- iv. Anti-Money Laundering and Combating Terrorism Financing Policy
- v. Market Conduct Policy
- vi. Complaints Management Policy

Regulatory Compliance:

The Company complied with all relevant laws and regulations within the year ended December 31, 2024.

BY Order of the Board

HATTELL

Mr. Olurin Oyewole Company Secretary/Legal Adviser FRC/2015/NBA/00000010752



STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

In conformity with the provisions of Section 377 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act 2020, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and in the manner required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020. In doing so, they ensure that, in preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for:

- Proper accounting records are maintained;
- Applicable accounting standards are complied with;
- Suitable accounting policies are adopted and consistently applied;
- Judgments and estimates made are reasonable and prudent;
- He going concern basis is used, unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue in business; and Internal control procedures are instituted which, as far as is reasonably possible, safeguards the assets -and also prevents and detects fraud and other irregularities.

Going Concern:

The Directors have made an assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and have no reason to believe the Company will not remain a going concern in the year ahead.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024 were approved by the Directors on February 7, 2025.

On behalf of the Directors of the Company

Chief George Oguntade, SAN Chairman FRC/2016/NBA/00000014230

Elwanashel

Edward Akinlade Group Managing Director FRC/2014/I CAN/00000007325



CERTIFICATION IN COMPLIANCE WITH RULE 17.15 DISCLOSURE OF DEALINGS IN ISSUER'S SHARES

In compliance with Rule 17.15 Disclosure of Dealings in Issuer's Shares, Rulebook of the Exchange 2015 (Issuers Rule) Haldane McCall Plc maintains effective security Trading Policy which guides Directors, Audit Committee members, employees and all individuals categorized as insiders as to their dealing in the company's shares.

The Policy is regularly reviewed and updated by the Board. The company has made specific inquiries of all the directors and other insiders and is not of any infringement.

Chief George Oguntade, SAN. Chairman FRC/2016/NBA/00000014230

EdwardzSholl

Mr. Edward Akinlade Group Managing Director FRC/2014/ICAN/00000007325



SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE/FREE FLOAT STATUS:

Description	31-Dec-24		31-Dec-23	
	Unit	Percentage	Unit	Percentage
Issued Share Capital	3,122,000,000	100%		
Total Substantial Shareholdings	1,935,253,796	61.99		
Directors Shareholdings (Direct & Indirect), Excluding Directors with substantial Interests				
Chief Oguntade George SAN	18,398,723	0.59		
Prince Oyewole Olurin	857,543	0.03		
Sir. Adewole Farinu	1,357,543	0.04		
Oyebola Prince Samuel Aboyega	857,143	0.03		
Mr. Tobena Nnamani	-	-		
Abiola Elugbaju	7,975,238	0.26		
Emuloh David	7,975,638	0.26		
Bidwell Onyeakosi	857,143	0.03		
Dapo Adekoje	18,126,400	0.58		
HRM Nosirudeen Babatunde Akanbi O. L.	300,000	0.01		
Ebele Anisiobi Akala	300,000	0.01		
Princess Ifeoluwaseyi Adesola	867,543	0.03		
Miss Shola Ojunde	28,971	0.00		
Mrs. Olajumoke Oluwakemi Oluwagbemiro	33,990,400	1.09		
Total Directors Shareholding	91,863,314	2.95		
Free Float in Units and Percentage	1,094,853,919	35.06		

DECLARATION:

Haldane McCall Plc with a free float percentage of **35.06%** as at 31 December 2024, is compliant with The Exchange's Free Float requirements for the companies listed on the Main Board.

FUNSHO OWOYEMI & COMPANY

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

...Since AD 1990 Corporate Head office: FDO Tower, 117 Apapa Road, Ebute Metta (West) Lagos, Tel: 08053788870 e-mail:funshowoyemi@yahoo.com Website:www.funshowoyemi.com.

 Port Harcourt Office:
 13, Isiokpo Street, Port Harcourt, Rivers State Abuja Office: Plot 1267
 Ahmadu Bello Way, Suite D4 Jima Plaza, Garki II Abuja

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HALDANE McCALL PLC FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2024

Opinion:

We have audited the Financial Statements of **HALDANE McCALL PLC** ("the Company") which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive Income, changes in equity, statement of cash flows for the year then ended, the notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies. In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of **HALDANE McCALL PLC** as at **31 December 2024** and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive and statement of cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the **International Financial Reporting Standards**, the **Companies and Allied Matters Act Cap C20 LFN 2020** and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, 2011.

Basis for Opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the requirements of the Institute of Chartered Accountants (ICAN) code and other independent requirements applicable to performing audit of financial statements in Nigeria. We have fulfilled our other ethical requirements applicable to performing audit of performing audits in Nigeria. The ICAN code is consistent with the International Ethics Standard Board for Accountants code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Part A and B). We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter:

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole and informing our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.



Revenue Recognition					
See note 33 and note 5 to the Financial Statements.					
Key Audit Matter	How our Audit address the mater				
Revenue is a significant Measure of the performance of the company.	- Our audit procedures include testing of the design, existence and operating effectiveness of Internal Control Procedures implemented as well as test of details to ensure accurate processing of revenue transaction				
	- We obtained and reviewed sales documents to ensure revenue were recognized in line with IFRS 15. Ensured that Revenue was recognized based on performance of obligation i.e. when the control over property was transferred to the customer. We were conscious that the timing of control is dependent on whether the customer collects the property himself or if the company delivers the property. Hence, we ensure that revenue was recognized at a point in time.				
	- We performed substantive analytical Procedures investigated differences in excess of the threshold.				
	- We performed cut-off test to ensure that revenues were recognized in the correct accounting period so as to ensure that there were no under/over statements of revenue.				
Contingent liabilities relate to estimates including costs related to litigation and claims.	- The company had no ongoing litigations during the year ended December 31 st , 2024.				
The Company is not exposed to any form of litigation and claims from customers.	- Since there is no outstanding litigation and claims, we did not make any provision for contingent liabilities.				



Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements:

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Financial Statements in accordance with the IFRS, and in the manner required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap C.20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2020, and the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) Act of Nigeria, 2011, and for such internal control as the management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Other Information:

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors' Report which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report. The other information does not include the financial statements and auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.



As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.



We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with the relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20 LFN 2020, we expressly state that

- *i.* We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.
- ii. The Operators have kept proper books of account, so far as appears from our examination of those books.
- iii. The Statements financial position, and comprehensive income are in agreement with the books of account and returns.

Signed:

Idris A. Alimi, FCA FRC/2019/ICAN/00000019812 For: Funsho Owoyemi & Co (Chartered Accountants) INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS OF NICERIA OTO3105

February 10, 2025. Lagos, Nigeria



REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE:

In compliance with the provisions of Section 407 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act 2020, we confirm that we have:

- 1. Reviewed the scope and planning of the audit requirements
- 2. Reviewed the external auditor's Management Letter for the year ended 31 December 2024 as well as the Management's response thereon; and
- 3. Ascertained that the accounting and reporting policies of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024 are in accordance with legal requirements and agreed ethical practices.

In our opinion, the scope and planning of the audit for the year ended 31 December 2024 were adequate and Management's responses to the External Auditors' findings were satisfactory.

In addition, the scope, planning and reporting of these Financial Statements were in compliance with the requirement of the Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the Company.

Sir. Adewole Farinu Vice Chairman Audit Committee FRC/2014/PRO/0000009493 February 7, 2025

Members of the Audit Committee:

- 1. **Prince Samuel Oyebola**
 - Sir. Adewole Farinu

-

- 3. Mr. Oludayo Mayowa
- Mr. Gbenga Olowojare 4.
- 5. Mr. Dickson Osagie

- Chairman
- **Vice Chairman**
- Member/Shareholder 's Representative
 - Member/Shareholder 's Representative
 - Member/Shareholder 's Representative

2.



BASIS OF PREPARATION OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.1 <u>Reporting Entity:</u>

Haldane McCall Plc was registered under the relevant provision of Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020 (as amended) to operate in Nigeria. Haldane McCall Plc was founded in 2012 as a Limited Company, but incorporated as a Public Liability Company in 2021.

In 2024, Haldane McCall Plc was listed on the Nigeria Exchange Group (NGX). Haldane McCall Plc is a seasoned development company in Nigeria with an established record in developing, selling and managing real estate assets, with remarkable growth and development in the hospitality business across Nigeria.

The company is Known for the quality of its products delivery, HMK Plc is one of the real estate companies recently listed on the Nigeria Stock Exchange that offers the most diversified portfolio in residential, commercial, retail and hospitality assets. The company is also allowed to carry out all businesses stated in its Memorandum and Articles of Association, with due care and diligence in order to have positive effect in the Nigerian Financial Market. Haldane McCall Plc's registered address is **2, Shonny Way, Shonibare Estate, Maryland, Ikeja, Lagos State**.

1.2 <u>Significant Accounting Policies:</u>

1.2.1 Basis of Preparation:

(a) Statement of Compliance:

These annual financial report for the year ended 31 December 2024, have been prepared in accordance with IAS 1 (presentation of Financial Statement) and IFRS 10 (Consolidated Financial Statement).

(b) Basis of Accounting:

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under historical cost convention except for the following items, which are measured on an alternative basis on each reporting date:

- Investments in debt instruments measured at amortized cost.
- Equity investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).
- The liability for defined benefit obligations is recognized as the present value of the defined benefit obligation less the fair value of the plan assets.
- Trade and other receivables and other liabilities are measured at amortized cost.

These financial statements are presented in naira, which is the NGX Group's functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand unless otherwise indicated.



HALDANE McCALL PLC

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31, DECEMBER 2024

	Notes	Dec-24	Dec-23
		N'000	N'000
Revenue	4	3,642,736	1,738,746
Less: Cost of Sales	5	(1,583,178)	<u>(816,752)</u>
Gross Profit		2,059,558	921,995
Other operating income	6	20,823	-
Administrative Expenses	7	(1,066,015)	(544,115)
Operating profit/(loss)		1,014,366	377,880
Finance cost			-
Profit/(Loss) before Taxation		1,014,366	377,880
Income Tax Expense		(334,741)	(120,921)
Profit for the year		679,625	256,958
Other Comprehensive Income for the year net taxe	S		
Deferred Tax Income / (Expense)		(893)	
Total comprehensive Income/(loss) for the year		678,732	256,958



HALDANE MCCALL PLC

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 2024

	Notes	Dec-24	Dec-23
Assets		N'000	N'000
Non-current Assets			
Property, Plant and Equipment	8	14,166,604	14,505,827
Long term investments	9	38,701	-
		14,205,304	14,505,827
Current Assets			
Inventories	10	5,600,504	2,183,659
Trade and other receivables	11	1,126,645	947,665
Cash and cash equivalent	12	1,062,360	270,599
		7,789,509	3,401,923
Total Assets	_	21,994,814	17,907,750
Equity and Liabilities			
Equity			
Share Capital	13	1,561,000	1,561,000
Share Premium Account		1,002,732	1,002,732
Deposit for shares		5,000,000	5,000,000
Revaluation Reserves		4,378,448	2,337,890
Revenue Reserve	14	4,713,724	4,034,992
		16,655,905	13,936,614
Liabilities			
Non-current Liabilities			
Long term liabilities	15	2,514,476	2,514,476
Deferred Tax		893	
		2,515,369	2,514,476
Current Liabilities			
Trade and other payables	16	896,731	690,986
Director's Current Account	17	1,607,193	326,984
Taxation	18	319,615	438,690
		2,823,539	1,456,659
Total Liabilities	-	5,338,909	3,971,136
Total Equity and Liabilities	_	21,994,814	17,907,750

These AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTs were approved by the Board of Directors on 7/02/2025 and signed on its behalf by:

O/Q is

Chief George Oguntade, SAN Chairman FRC/2016/NBA/00000014230

I.MA

Edward Akinlade Group Managing Director FRC/2014/I CAN/0000007325



HALDANE MCCALL PLC

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31, DECEMBER 2024

	SHARE CAPITAL AMOUNT	STATUTORY RESERVE	RETAINED EARNING	TOTAL EQUITY
	N'000	N'000	N'000	N'000
Balance at 1 January, 2024	1,561,000	1,002,732	4,034,992	6,598,724
Net income after dividend	-	-	678,732	678,732
Balance at December 2024	1,561,000	1,002,732	4,713,724	7,277,457
Balance at 1 January, 2023	1,561,000	1,002,732	3,778,034	6,341,766
Net income after dividend	-		256,958	256,958
Balance at 31 December 2023	1,561,000	1,002,732	4,034,992	<u> </u>



HALDANE MCCALL PLC

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2024

		Dec-24 N'000	Dec-23 N'000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES		11000	1,000
Operating Profit Before Taxation		1,014,366	377,880
ADJUSTMENT FOR NON-CASH ITEMS			
Depreciation		81,912	193,277
Fair Value Reserve of Financial Assets		79,899	
		1,176,177	571,156
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL			
Stock: Work in progress		(3,416,845)	(501,701)
Increase In Account Receivable		(178,980)	(51,635)
Increase In Account Payable		205,745	134,677
		(2,213,903)	152,497
Cash from operating Activities			
Tax paid		(453,815)	-
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities	а	(2,667,718)	152,497
INVESTING ACTIVITIES			
Purchases of Fixed Assets		(2,045,030)	(244,340)
Sale of Assets		4,263,000	480,670
Long term Investments		(38,701)	-
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities	b	2,179,269	236,330
FINANCING ACTIVITIES			
Director's Current Account		1,280,209	(260,326)
Long term Liability		, ,	
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities	с	1,280,209	(260,326)
Cash Generated for the year	a+b+c	791,761	128,502
Cash and Cash Equivalent at the beginning		270,599	142,098
Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end		1,062,360	270,600
·		<u> </u>	
REPRESENTING			
Cash and Cash Equivalents		1,062,360	270,599
		1,062,360	270,599



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

1. <u>The Company:</u>

Haldane McCall Plc ("The Company") was incorporated on March 27, 2012, as a private Limited Company with an established record in developing, selling and managing real estate assets, with remarkable growth and development in the hospitality business across Nigeria. The company was listed on the main Board of Nigeria Exchange Group (NGX) on November 20, 2024 listing 3,122,000,000 ordinary shares of 50k each @ N3.84 per share.

1.1 **Composition of Audited Financial Statements:**

The AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS are drawn up in Nigerian Naira, the financial currency of Haldane McCall PLC, in accordance with IFRS accounting presentation. The AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS comprise:

- Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
- Statement of financial position
- Statement of changes in equity
- Statement of cash flows
- Notes to the Audited Financial Statements

Additional information provided by the management includes:

- Value added statement
- Five-year financial summary

1.2 Financial Period:

These AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS cover the financial year from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024 with comparative figures for the financial year from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023.

2. <u>Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and</u> <u>Interpretations by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee</u> <u>(IFRIC):</u>

2.1 Accounting Standards and Interpretations Issued and Effective:

The following revisions to accounting standards and pronouncements were issued and effective at the reporting period.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 (CONT'D)

2.2 Effective for the Financial Year commencing 1 January 2024:

- Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended use (Amendment to IAS 16)
- Amendments to IFRS 3: Reference to conceptual framework
- Onerous Contracts—Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37)
- Annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018 2020

2.3 Accounting Standards and Interpretations Issued but not yet effective:

The following revisions to accounting standards and pronouncements that are applicable to the Company were issued but are not yet effective. Where IFRSs and IFRIC interpretations listed below permit early adoption, the Company has elected not to apply them in the preparation of these AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

The full impact of these IFRSs and IFRIC Interpretations is currently being assessed by the company, but none of these pronouncements are expected to result in any material adjustments to the AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

2.4 Effective for the Financial Year commencing 1 January 2023:

- Definitions of accounting estimates (Amendment to IAS 8)
- Classification of liabilities as current and Non-current (Amendment to IAS 1)
- Disclosures of accounting policies (Amendment to IAS 1 and IFRS practice statement 2
- Sales and contribution of Asset between an investor and its associate or Joint venture (Amendment to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)
- Amendment to IAS 12 Income Taxes. Deferred tax related to asset and liability arising from a single transaction
- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

2.5 **Accounting standards and Interpretations Issued and Effective:**

All standards and interpretations will be adopted at their effective date and their implications on the Company are stated below:

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024



Standard	Nature of change	Required to be implemented for periods beginning on or after
Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended use (Amendments to IAS 16)	The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items produced before that asset is available for use, i.e. proceeds while bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Consequently, an entity recognizes such sales proceeds and related costs in profit or loss. The entity measures the cost of those items in accordance with IAS 2 Inventories. The amendments also clarify the meaning of 'testing whether an asset is functioning properly'. IAS 16 now specifies this as assessing whether the technical and physical performance of the asset is such that it is capable of being used in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes. If not presented separately in the statement of comprehensive income, the financial statements shall disclose the amounts of proceeds and cost included in profit or loss that relate to items produced that are not an output of the entity's ordinary activities, and which line item(s) in the statement of comprehensive income include(s) such proceeds and cost. The amendments are applied retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and equipment that are brought to the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements. The entity shall recognise the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest period presented. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with early application permitted.	1 January 2022
Amendments to IFRS 3 – Reference to the Conceptual Framework	The amendments update IFRS 3 so that it refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework instead of the 1989 Framework. They also add to IFRS 3 a requirement that, for obligations within the scope of IAS 37, an acquirer applies IAS 37 to determine whether at the acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result of past events. For a levy that would be within the scope of IFRIC 21 Levies, the acquirer applies IFRIC 21 to determine whether the obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has occurred by the acquisition date. Finally, the amendments add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not	1 January 2022



	recognize contingent assets acquired in a business combination.	
Amendments to IAS 37 - Onerous Contracts—Cost of Fulfilling a Contract	The amendments specify that the 'cost of fulfilling' a contract comprises the 'costs that relate directly to the contract'. Costs that relate directly to a contract consist of both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour or materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The amendments apply to contracts for which the entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments. Comparatives are not restated. Instead, the entity shall recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings or other component of equity, as appropriate, at the date of initial application. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with early application permitted.	1 January 2022
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018–2020	 The following improvements were finalized in May 2020: IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - clarifies which fees should be included in the 10% test for derecognition of financial liabilities. IFRS 16 Leases - amendment of illustrative example 13 to remove the illustration of payments from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements, to remove any confusion about the treatment of lease incentives. IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards - allows entities that have measured their assets and liabilities at carrying amounts recorded in their parent's books to also measure any cumulative translation differences using the amounts reported by the parent. This amendment will also apply to associates and joint ventures that have taken the same IFRS 1 exemption. IAS 41 Agriculture - removal of the requirement for entities to exclude cash flows for taxation when measuring fair value under IAS 41. This amendment 	1 January 2022



	standard to discount cash flows on a post-tax basis.	
Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8)	The amendment to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors clarifies how companies should distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The distinction is important, because changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively to future transactions and other future events, but changes in accounting policies are generally applied retrospectively to past transactions and other past events as well as the current period.	1 January 2023
	The amendments replace the definition of a change in accounting estimates with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are "monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty". The definition of a change in accounting estimates was deleted. However, the IASB retained the concept of changes in accounting estimates in the Standard with the following clarifications:	
	• A change in accounting estimate that results from new information or new developments is not the correction of an error	
	• The effects of a change in an input or a measurement technique used to develop an accounting estimate are changes in accounting estimates if they do not result from the correction of prior period errors	
	The IASB added two examples (Examples 4-5) to the Guidance on implementing IAS 8, which accompanies the Standard. The IASB has deleted one example (Example 3) as it could cause confusion in light of the amendments.	
	The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the beginning of that period, with earlier application permitted.	



Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non- current (Amendments to IAS 1)	The narrow-scope amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements clarify that liabilities are classified as either current or non- current, depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting period. Classification is unaffected by the expectations of the entity or events after the reporting date (e.g. the receipt of a waver or a breach of covenant). The amendments also clarify what IAS 1 means when it refers to the 'settlement' of a liability. The amendments could affect the classification of liabilities, particularly for entities that previously considered management's intentions to determine classification and for some liabilities that can be converted into equity. They must be applied retrospectively in accordance with the normal requirements in IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. In May 2020, the IASB issued an Exposure Draft proposing to defer the effective date of the amendments to 1 January 2023.	1 January 2023
Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2)	The IASB amended IAS 1 to require entities to disclose their material rather than their significant accounting policies. The amendments define what is 'material accounting policy information' and explain how to identify when accounting policy information is material. They further clarify that immaterial accounting policy information does not need to be disclosed. If it is disclosed, it should not obscure material accounting information. To support this amendment, the IASB also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements to provide guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.	1 January 2023



Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture – (Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)	The IASB has made limited scope amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. The amendments clarify the accounting treatment for sales or contribution of assets between an investor and its associates or joint ventures. They confirm that the accounting treatment depends on whether the non-monetary assets sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture constitute a 'business' (as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations). Where the non-monetary assets constitute a business, the investor will recognize the full gain or loss on the sale or contribution of assets. If the assets do not meet the definition of a business, the gain or loss is recognized by the investor only to the extent of the other investor's investors in the associate or joint venture. The amendments apply prospectively.	N/A**
IFRS17 Insurance Contracts	 IFRS 17 was issued in May 2017 as replacement for IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. It requires a current measurement model where estimates are re- measured each reporting period. Contracts are measured using the building blocks of: discounted probability-weighted cash flows an explicit risk adjustment, and a contractual service margin ("CSM") representing the unearned profit of the contract which is recognised as revenue over the coverage period. The standard allows a choice between 	1 January 2023
	recognising changes in discount rates either in the income statement or directly in other comprehensive income. The choice is likely to reflect how insurers account for their financial assets under IFRS 9. An optional, simplified premium allocation approach is permitted for the liability for the remaining coverage for short duration contracts, which are often written by non-life insurers.	
	There is a modification of the general measurement model called the 'variable fee approach' for certain contracts written by life insurers where policyholders share in the returns from underlying items. When applying the variable fee approach the entity's share of the fair value changes of the underlying items is included in the contractual service margin. The results of insurers	



		0
	using this model are therefore likely to be less volatile than under the general model.	
	The new rules will affect the financial statements and key performance indicators of all entities that issue insurance contracts or investment contracts with discretionary participation features. The directors do not anticipate that the application of the Standard in the future will have an impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements.	
Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes—Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12)	The amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes require companies to recognize deferred tax on transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal amounts of taxable and deductible temporary differences. They will typically apply to transactions such as leases of lessees and decommissioning obligations and will require the recognition of additional deferred tax assets and liabilities.	1 January 2023
	The amendment should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented. In addition, entities should recognize deferred tax assets (to the extent that it is probable that they can be utilized) and deferred tax liabilities at the beginning of the earliest comparative period for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with:	
	 right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and 	
	•decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, and the corresponding amounts recognized as part of the cost of the related assets.	
	The cumulative effect of recognizing these adjustments is recognized in retained earnings, or another component of equity, as appropriate.	
	IAS 12 did not previously address how to account for the tax effects of on-balance sheet leases and similar transactions and various approaches were considered acceptable. Some entities may have already accounted for such transactions consistent with the new requirements. These entities will not be affected by the amendments	



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 (CONT'D)

3. <u>Significant Accounting Policies:</u>

3.1 Statement of Compliance:

The annual AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTs are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and the requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act (CAMA) and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act.

The AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTs have been prepared on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for the assets. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

3.2 Accounting Principles and Policies:

The AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS have been prepared in accordance with the Company's accounting policies approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

3.3 Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes (where applicable) as provided in the contract with the customers.

3.3.1 Sale of Goods:

Revenue is measured based on the consideration stated in the contract with a customer while it recognizes revenue when control over the good or service is transferred to a customer.

The timing of the satisfaction of performance obligation in contract with a customer, including significant payment terms and related revenue policies are met when:

- the good or service is delivered to a customer or its premises in line with the contract term.
- the customer accepts the good or service.
- obtain full control of the good or service delivered.
- at a point in time, invoices are generated and revenue is recognized in the books.

3.3.2 Interest revenue

Interest income is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated.



future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

3.3.3 Rental income

Rental income represents income from Entity's building let out to third parties while the sales of properties income represent the Revenue from the properties disposed by the entity. Both the Rental income and Income from sales of properties are credited to the statement of comprehensive income when they are earned.

3.4 Foreign Currency Transaction:

The Audited Financial Statements of the Company are prepared in Nigerian Naira which is its functional currency and presentation currency. In preparing the Audited Financial Statements, transactions in currencies other than the Company's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting year, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

3.5 Pensions and other Post-Employment Benefits:

The Company operates a defined contributory pension plan for its employees and pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior years.

In addition, payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognized as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

3.6 Taxation:

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

3.6.1 Current Tax:

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.

The Company's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

3.6.2 Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable



profit, and is accounted for using the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the liability is settled or the asset is realized based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of comprehensive income, except when it relates to items charged or credited in other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

3.7 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for us in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss.

The initial cost of the property, plant and equipment comprise of its purchase price or consideration cost, any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset into operation, the initial estimate of dismantling obligation (where applicable) and any borrowing cost.

3.7.1 Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets (other than freehold land and assets under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting year, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The basis for depreciation is as follows:



	Range	Rate
Freehold land and buildings	20 - 100 Years	1%
Leasehold land and buildings	20 - 50 Years	Over the period of the lease
Plant and machinery	1 - 5 Years	20%
Motor vehicles	2 - 5 Years	20%
Furniture, fittings and equipment:		
- Office furniture	3 - 12 Years	20%
- Office equipment	5 - 15 Years	20%
- Computer equipment	2 - 10 Years	20%
Intangible Assets - Software	5 - 10 Years	20%

- -- -- -

Freehold land and Assets under construction are not depreciated. Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

3.8 Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization methods are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the following periods:

Software 10 Years 10%

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset is measured as difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognized as profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 (CONT'D)

3.9 Investment Property:

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property under construction for such purposes).

The initial cost of the investment property comprises of its purchase price or construction cost, any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset into operation, the initial estimating of dismantling obligation (where applicable) and any borrowing cost.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets (other than freehold land and assets under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting year, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The basis for depreciation is as follows:

Leasehold Land and Buildings 100 Years 1%

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the year in which the property is derecognized.

3.10 Impairment of Long-Lived Assets:

The recoverable amounts of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment as soon as any indication of impairment exists. This test is performed at least annually. The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value (less costs to sell) or its value in use.

Assets are grouped into cash-generating units (or CGUs) and tested. A cashgenerating unit is a homogeneous group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other groups of assets. The value in use of a CGU is determined by reference to the discounted expected future cash flows, based upon the management's expectation of future economic and operating conditions. If this value is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss on property, plant and equipment, or on other intangible assets, is recognized either in "Depreciation, depletion and amortization of property, plant and equipment, or in "Other Expense", respectively. Impairment losses recognized in prior years can be reversed up to the original carrying amount, had the impairment loss not been recognized.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 (CONT'D)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

3.11 Non-Current Assets held for Sale:

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

3.12 Inventories:

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated selling expenses. Cost is determined on weighted average basis and includes all costs incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their present location and condition.

3.13 Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, current balances with banks and similar institutions and highly liquid short-term investments that are convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risks of changes in value. Investments with maturity greater than three months or less than twelve months are shown under current assets.

3.14 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, it carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).



When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

3.14.1 **Provisions (Continued):**

i. Onerous Contracts:

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognized and measured as provisions. An onerous contract is considered to exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract.

ii. Restructuring:

A restructuring provision is recognized when the Company has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. The measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with the ongoing activities of the Company.

3.15 Financial Instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when an entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

3.15.1 *Financial Assets:*

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

a. Amortized Cost and Effective Interest Method:

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,



NOTES TO THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 (CONT'D)

where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments measured subsequently at amortized cost. Interest income is recognized in profit or loss and is included in the "investment income" line item.

Classification of financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently.

b. Trade and Other Receivables:

Trade and other receivables are initially recognized at fair value, and are subsequently classified as loans and receivables and measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due in accordance with the original terms of the credit given and includes an assessment of recoverability based on historical trend analyses and events that exist at reporting date. The amount of the provision is the difference between the carrying value and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

Despite the foregoing, the Company may make the following irrevocable election/designation at initial recognition of a financial asset:

- the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if certain criteria are met; and
- the Company may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 (CONT'D)

c. Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and other short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts are not offset against positive bank balances unless a legally enforceable right of offset exists, and there is an intention to settle the overdraft and realize the net cash simultaneously, or to settle on a net basis. All short-term cash investments are invested with major financial institutions in order to manage credit risk.

d. Foreign Exchange Gains and Losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. The foreign exchange component forms part of its fair value gain or loss. Therefore, for financial assets that are classified as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component is recognized in profit or loss.

For foreign currency denominated debt instruments measured at amortized cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortized cost of the financial assets and are recognized in the 'other gains and losses' line item in the Profit or loss.

e. Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.

Measurement of ECLs:

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset. Objective evidence of impairment could include:



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 (CONT'D)

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty or
- breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments or
- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization or
- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Company's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 60 days, as well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

The amount of the impairment loss recognized is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows reflecting the amount of collateral and guarantee, discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written-off against the allowance account.

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written-off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 (CONT'D)

f. Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortized cost, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognized in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset that is classified as fair-value-throughother-comprehensive-income (FVTOCI), the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment's revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is reclassified to retained earnings.

3.15.2 Financial Liabilities and Equity:

a. Classification as debt or equity:

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

b. Equity Instruments:

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

c. Financial Liabilities:

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities 'at FVTPL' or 'other financial liabilities. The Company does not have financial liabilities classified as financial liabilities 'at FVTPL'.

Other Financial Liabilities:

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 (CONT'D)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

d. Foreign Exchange Gains and Losses:

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortized cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortized cost of the instruments and are recognized in the 'other gains and losses' line item in the profit or loss.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period, for financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognized in profit or loss.

e. De-recognition of Financial Liabilities:

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable, including any noncash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in profit or loss.

3.16 Creditors and Accruals:

Creditors and accruals are the financial obligations due to third parties and are falling due within one year.

3.17 Asset retirement obligations

Asset retirement obligations, which result from a legal or constructive obligation, are recognized based on a reasonable estimate in the year in which the obligation arises. The associated asset retirement costs are capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the underlying asset and depreciated over the useful life of this asset. An entity is required to measure changes in the liability for an asset retirement obligation due to the passage of time (accretion) by applying a risk-free discount rate to the amount of the liability. The increase of the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as part of finance cost.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 (CONT'D)

Valuation of financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities have been measured at amortized cost. The effective interest rate used in determining the amortized cost of the individual liability amounts has been estimated using the contractual cash flows on the loans. IAS 39 requires the use of the expected cash flows but also allows for the use of contractual cash flows in instances where the expected cash flows cannot be reliably determined. However, the effective interest rate has been determined to be the rate that effectively discounts all the future contractual cash flows on the loans including processing, management fees and other fees that are incidental to the different loan transactions.

3.18 Impairment on Non-Current Assets:

Determining whether non-current assets are impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash generating units to which assets have been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Company to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value. The assets were tested for impairment and there was no indication of impairment observed after testing. Therefore, no impairment loss was recognized during the year.

4. <u>Revenue:</u>

The following is the analysis of the Company's revenue for the year from continuing operations (excluding investment income).

Revenue from sale of property & Hotel Operations

	Dec-24	Dec-23
	N'000	N'000
TURNOVER		
Sale of land and Building	2,681,113	1,047,981
Rental Income	13,736	41,466
Hotel	699,885	583,387
Service Charge	178,028	64,159
Others	69,974	1,753
	3,642,736	1,738,746
Cost of Sales		
	Dec-24	Dec-23
	N'000	N'000
Opening stock	2,183,659	1,681,958
Add Purchases	5,000,023	<u>1,318,453</u>
	7,183,682	3,000,411
Less Returns	_	-
	7,183,682	3,000,411
Less closing stock	(5,600,504)	2,183,659
2	1,583,178	816,752

5.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 (CONT'D)

6. <u>Other Operating Income:</u>

	Dec-24 N'000	Dec-23 N'000
Interest Received	10	-
Other Income	20,813	
	20,823	

7. <u>Administrative Expenses:</u>

	Dec-24 N'000	Dec-23 N'000
Administrative Expenses (a)	461,851	223,344
Other Administrative Expenses (b)	604,164	320,772
	1,066,015	544,115

	Dec-24	2023
	N'000	N'000
a <u>ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES</u>		
Staff Welfare	11,289	45,493
Salaries & Wages	174,591	108,437
Final entitlement	9,514	3,878
Subscription	13,453	5,562
Office Expenses	5,502	6,995
Stationery & Printing	11,223	3,996
Diesel & Fuel	25,485	5,551
Utilities	-	198
Industrial Training Fund	-	1,084
Repairs & Maintenance	43,992	12,026
Pension: Employer's contribution	10,445	9,649
Telephone, Postages & Internet expenses	12,235	5,634
Rent	51,341	4,500
Gifts & Donation	51,682	10,341
Business Development	27,913	-
Local/State Government	9,961	-
Survey Plan	1,120	-
Fine and Penalty	1,368	
Electrical Materials	736	
	461,851	223,344



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 (CONT'D)

		Dec-24	2023
		N'000	N'000
b	OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES		
0	Marketing Expenses	42,055	8,304
	Motor Running Expenses	18,412	10,110
	Labour & Gardening	2,408	30
	Advertisement	18,106	5,142
	Public Relations Expenses	-	170
	Security Expenses	7,852	2,267
	Medical Expenses	6,499	574
	Insurance	4,771	7,354
	Legal and Professional services	, 59,346	1,200
	Audit and Consultancy	5,375	3,000
	Sewage	6,803	-
	CAC Annual Filling	49	-
	Professional fee on Land and Building	62,549	-
	Service Charge	148	-
	Professional fee	61,918	63,337
	Survey & consultancy fee	25,843	1,768
	Depreciation	81,912	193,277
	Entertainment	13,000	3,576
	Electricity	74,990	4,758
	Fire Extinguisher	67	193
	Land use Charge	10,661	938
	Cleaning & Fumigation	1,950	2,481
	General Expenses	24,808	2,959
	Generator Maintenance	3,107	529
	Computer Expenses	11,874	1,723
	Transport and Travelling	43,291	2,529
	Training and Seminars	4,417	2,188
	Cleaning and Supplies	1,578	
	Bank Charges	10,377	2,366
		604,164	320,772



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 (CONT'D)

8. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

	Land	Freehold Land & Building	Plant & Machineries	Motor Vehicles	Computer & Accessories	Furniture & Fittings	Office Equipment	Work in Progress	TOTAL
	N'000	N'000	N'000	N'000	N'000	N'000	N'000	N'000	N'000
COST Balance as at 01/01/2024 Addition During the year Revaluation during the year Disposal during the year Reclassification Balance as at 30/9/2024	9,965 459,000 - 1,760,520 2,229,485	15,173,956 850,315 1,412,409 (4,263,000) (6,960,520) 6,213,160	118,953 12,419 - - - 1 31,372	191,830 17,000 - - - 208,830	1,580 5,115 - - - - - -	22,237 8,141 - - - - 30,378	30,658 8,316 - - - 38,975	1,133,759 89,250 - 5,200,000 6,423,009	15,539,213 2,045,030 1,960,659 (4,263,000) - - 15,281,902
Balance as at 01/01/2023 Addition During the year Disposal during the year Balance as at 31/12/2023	- - -	15,451,286 222,670 (500,000) 15,173,956	98,253 20,700 - 118,953	191,830 - - 191,830	1,360 220 - 1,580	21,487 750 - 22,237	34,009 - (3,351) 30,658	- - -	15,798,224 244,340 (503,351) 15,539,213
DEPRECIATION Balance as at 01/01/2024 Charged for the year Disposal during the year Reclassification	- - -	720,291 62,132	95,516 7,171	174,367 6,042	588 1,221	19,799 2,116	22,825 3,230	- -	1,033,386 81,912 - -
Balance as at 30/9/2024	<u> </u>	782,423	102,687	180,410	1,809	21,915	26,055	<u> </u>	1,115,299
Balance as at 01/01/2023 Charged for the year Disposal during the year Balance as at 31/12/2023		588,551 151,740 (20,000) 720,291	81,485 14,030 95,516	153,181 21,186 174,367	272 316	18,860 939 19,799	20,440 5,066 (2,681) 22,825		862,790 193,277 (22,681) 1,033,386
<u>NET BOOK VALUE</u> Balance as at 31/12/2024	- 	<u>5,430,737</u>	28,685	28,420	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u>6,423,009</u>	14,166,604
Balance as at 31/12/2023		14,453,665	23,437	17,462	992	2,438	7,833	<u> </u>	14,505,827



HALDANE MCCALL PLC NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31, DECEMBER 2024

		-	
		Dec-24	Dec-23
-		N'000	N'000
9	LONG TERM INVESTMENT	20.164	
	Investment in Transcorp Hotel Investments in Jaiz	38,164 537	-
	Investments in Jaiz	<u>38,701</u>	
10	INVENTORIES AND WORK IN RECORDS	36,/01	
10	INVENTORIES AND WORK IN PROGRESS Consumable Stocks	3,678	3,175
	Properties under Construction	(10a) 5,596,826	2,180,484
	rioperties under construction	<u> </u>	2,183,659
10a	Properties under Construction	<u>;000;304</u>	2,103,033
200	Balance as at 1 January	2,180,484	1,120,775
	Addition during the year	5,312,480	699,789
	Transfer from Inventories to PPE	(850,315)	-
	Transfer from PPE to Inventories	-	559,920
	Disposal During the year	(1,045,823)	(200,000)
		<u> </u>	2,180,484
11	TRADE AND OTHER RECIEVABLE		
	Trade Debtors	484,940	927,354
	Other Debtors	-	20,311
	Staff Advance	349	-
	Inter Company	641,356	
		1,126,645	947,665
12	BANK BALANCE		
	Deposit	1,000,000	-
	Bank Balance	60,272	267,512
	Cash Balance	2,088	3,087
		<u> </u>	270,599
13	SHARE CAPITAL		
	Authorized:3,122,000,000		
	Ordinary Shares of N0.50 each	1,561,000	1,561,000
	Issues and fully paid up:		
	Ordinary shares of N0.50 each	1,561,000	1,561,000
14	REVENUE RESERVE		
	Bal b/fwd	4,034,992	3,778,034
	Transfer for the year	678,732	256,958
	Bal c/fwd	4,713,724	4,034,992
		2 54 4 4 7 6	2 514 476
15	LONG TERM LIABILITIES	2,514,476	2,514,476
	The long-term loan is provided by majority s	shareholder to the Gr	oup and It is
	interest free over the year.		
16	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE		
	The breakdown of amount falling due within		
	Trade Creditors	334,350	96,606
	Other creditors	235,498	594,380
	Inter Company	326,884	-
		896,731	<u> </u>
17	DIRECTOR'S CURRENT ACCOUNT		
	Bal b/f	326,984	326,984
	Movement during the year	1,307,711	520,501
	Interest Paid on Director's Loan		-
	Interest Paid on Director's Loan	(27,502)	
		<u> </u>	326,984
18	TAXATION		
	Balance brought forward	438,690	317,768
	Income tax Provision for the year	334,741	120,921
	Deferred Tax Experies	773,430	438,690
	Deferred Tax Expense	893	429.600
	Transfer to Revenue Reserve	774,323 (428,081)	438,690
		346,242	
	Payment made during the year	(25,734)	
	Transfer to Deferred Tax	(893)	

Payment made during the year Transfer to Deferred Tax Balance carried Forward

438,690

(893)

319,615



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 (CONT'D)

19 CONTIGENT LIABILITIES

The company has no contingent liabilities in respect of any pending litigation.

20 EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

There were no events after the reporting date which could have had a material effect on the financial position of the company as at 30, September 2024 which have not been adequately provided for.

21. Financial Instrument:

21.1 Significant Accounting Policies:

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted (including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the bases for recognition of income and expenses) for each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in the accounting policies in Note 3 to the AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

	2024	2023
Financial asset		
Cash and bank balances Loan and receivables	1,062,360,313 -	270,599,227 -
	1,062,360,313	270,599,227
Financial Liabilities		
Financial Liabilities at amortized cost: Trade and other payables Borrowings	896,731,346 -	690,986,190 -
	896,731,346	690,986,190

22. Fair Value of Financial Instruments:

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS approximate their fair values.

23. Financial Risk Management:

Risk management roles and responsibilities are assigned to stake holders in the Company at three levels: The Board, Executive Committee and Line Managers. The Board oversight is performed by the Board of Directors through the Board Risk and Management Committee.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 (CONT'D)

The second level is performed by the Executive Management Committee (EXCOM). The third level is performed by all line managers under EXCOM and their direct reports. They are required to comply with all risk policies and procedures and to manage risk exposures that arise from daily operations.

The Internal Audit Department provides an independent assurance of the risk frame work. They assess compliance with established controls and recommendations for improvement in processes are escalated to relevant management, Audit Committee and Board of Directors.

23.1 Financial Risk Management Objectives:

The Company manages financial risk relating to its operations through internal risk reports which analyses exposure by degree and magnitude of risk. These risks include market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.



HALDANE MCCALL PLC FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2024

	Notes		2023	2022	2021	2020
CAPITAL EMPLOYED		N'000	N'000	N'000	N'000	N'000
Share Capital		1,561,000	1,561,000	1,561,000	1,561,000	249,825
Share Premium		1,002,732	1,002,732	1,002,732	1,002,732	124,413
Deposit for Shares		5,000,000	5,000,000	5,000,000	5,000,000	2,726,836
Fair value reservee of financial assets	3	4,378,448	2,337,890	2,337,890	3,827,890	-
Revenue Reserve		4,713,724	4,034,992	3,778,034	3,680,087	3,626,364
Director Current Account	4	1,607,193	326,984	587,310	391,662	-
Shareholders Interest		18,263,098	14,263,598	14,266,966	15,463,370	6,727,438
EMPLOYMENT OF CAPITAL						
Fixed Assets		14,166,604	14,505,827	14,935,434	17,894,467	14,428,603
Long Term Investment		38,701	-	-	-	200,780
Net Current Assets		6,572,270	2,272,248	1,846,009	1,283,380	894,028
Bank Loan		-	-	-	1,200,000	1,031,496
Long Term Liability		2,514,476	2,514,476	2,514,476	2,514,476	7,764,476
		18,263,098	14,263,598	14,266,966	15,463,370	6,727,438
			-	-	-	-

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Revenue	5	3,642,736	1,738,746	2,916,701	1,309,324	1,413,795
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax		1,014,366	377,880	144,040	79,004	172,232
Taxation		334,741	120,921	46,093	25,281	55,114
		-	-			
Profit/(Loss) After Tax		678,732	256,958	97,948	53,723	117,118

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Value Added from Trading Activities



HALDANE MCCALL PLC STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

	Notes	2024 N'000	%	2023 N'000	%			
REV ENUE Bought-in- Materials and Services	4	3,642,736 (2,359,833)	279 (181)	1,738,746 (981,218)	230 (130)			
Other Income	6	20,823	2	-	0			
Value Added from Trading Activities		1,303,727	100	757,529	100			
Applied as follows:								
To pay employees:								
Salaries wages and other benefits		207,449	16	184,006	24			
_								
To pay Government:								
Income and education taxes		334,741	26	120,921	16			
To Pay Provider of Capital:								
Finance Cost		-		2,366	0			
Retained for replacement of assets and business growth								
Depreciation			6	193,277	26			
(Loss) / Profit for the year			52	256,958	34			

1,303,727 100

757,529

100